
                               Agenda Item #: __________________________________ 
 
 
 

      Staff Report 
              City of Manhattan Beach 

 
 

 

TO:   Honorable Mayor Tell and Members of the City Council 
 

THROUGH:  David N. Carmany, City Manager 
 

FROM:  Jim Arndt, Director of Public Works 
   Steve Finton, City Engineer 
 

DATE:  April 17, 2012 
 

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement with Psomas ($47,601) for Design 
Services Related to the FY 2012-2015 Rehabilitation of Sewer Manholes 
Project 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that City Council authorize the City Manager to award a Professional 
Services Agreement to Psomas in an amount not to exceed $47,601 for professional engineering 
services to design the FY 2012-2015 Rehabilitation of Sewer Manholes Project. 
 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 
Funding for the recommended contract is available from appropriations made by City Council 
through the Capital Improvement Plan as follows: 
 

Table 1                                                Budget 

Current Design Appropriation (FY 2011-12) to the FY2012-2015 
Rehabilitation of Sewer Manholes project. Project No. 12832E 

$100,000 

 

Estimated expenditures for project management, geotechnical, topographic survey and 
engineering costs are indicated in Table 2 below. 
 

Table 2                                                Estimated Costs 

Current Design Appropriation (FY 2011-12) to the FY2012-2015 
Rehabilitation of Sewer Manholes project. Project No. 12832E 

$100,000 

Project Management Costs - Sunbeam Consulting $10,124  

Recommended Design Agreement with Psomas $47,601 

Total Estimated Design and Project Management Expenses $57,601 

Balance  $42,399 
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BACKGROUND: 
City Council has committed to an aggressive infrastructure investment program. Increases in 
sewer rates have generated funding needed to make the important infrastructure improvements. 
The City’s gravity sewer system consists of 81.6 miles underground pipelines accessed by 2031 
manholes.  Manholes are vertical maintenance access shafts reaching from ground level down to 
the underground sewer pipes.  They are usually located in streets; however, a small number are 
located in parks or in easements through private properties.  Manholes are constructed of 
concrete or brick and can deteriorate over the years due to vehicle loading, corrosive sewer 
gases or other causes. 
 
In 2008 and 2009, 1075 (53%) of the City’s 2031 manholes were inspected.  Twenty seven 
manholes were identified as needing rehabilitation.  The recommended rehabilitation consists of 
full replacement, mortar repair, manhole cover replacement and/or application of an interior 
surface liner. The fiscal year 2011-2012 CIP includes funding to design the rehabilitate these 
sewer manholes. (See Attachment 1). 
 

In January 2011, Staff issued a request for proposal for On-Call Engineering Services. Fifty-
three proposals were received. Staff reviewed the proposals and developed a shortlist of 
fourteen firms for consideration on City projects over the next three years. Five firms were 
identified for water main and sewer main design services: AKM Consulting Engineers, Cannon, 
Psomas, Tetra Tech, Inc. and VA Consulting, Inc.  The City solicited proposals from all five 
firms and received the following proposals. 
 
Rank Firm Proposed 

Fee 
Staff Determination 

1 Psomas 
 

$47,601 The proposal from Psomas included all design elements, 
methods and expertise required for the project.  In 
addition to design work, Psomas will perform an 
extensive review of rehabilitation alternatives to assist 
staff in selecting rehabilitation methods.  Psomas’ 
proposal was deemed the most effective proposal 
submitted for the project. 

2 AKM 
Consulting 
Engineers 

$69,834 AKM’s proposal was very good, however the fee was 
deemed to be too high. 

3 TetraTech-  $40,011 TetraTech’s proposal was satisfactory, however it did 
not include a robust discussion of rehabilitation methods.  
Being that this is the first manhole rehabilitation project 
performed by the City, it is important that staff 
understand the alternatives available. 

- 
VA Consulting, 
Inc. 

- Did not submit 

- Cannon - Did not submit 
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Psomas was selected as the most appropriate firm in terms of comprehensive Scope of Work, 
prior experience, capability of staff, and proposed fee for this project. Upon finalization of the 
Scope of Work, their final Not to Exceed cost proposal was $47,601 which is appropriate for 
this type and magnitude of work.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
Under the recommended agreement, Psomas will inspect each manhole, recommend the most 
effective rehabilitation method and will then prepare plans, specifications and estimates to be 
used to solicit bids and award a construction contract to perform the work.  
 

It is expected that plans and specifications will be complete and ready for bidding in August 
2012 with construction commencing in October 2012. 
 
Attachments:   

1) Capital Improvement Plan Detail Sheet with Map 
2) Recommended Agreement with Psomas. 

 
xc: Henry Mitzner, Controller 
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ATTACHMENT 1 
City of Manhattan Beach 

2013-2017 Capital Improvement Plan 
 

Project Type: Utilities 
 

Project Title: Rehabilitation of Sewer Manholes FY 2012-13 through FY 2014-15 

Description: 
 
Rehabilitation of Sewer Manholes at the following locations: 
 

Street Manhole Recommendation Year/Cost 

Highland Ave 19-015 Replace 

  
  
FY 1011-12 
$100K 
  
  

1st St 01-080 Repair mortar 

Curtis Ave 05-052 
Replace manhole cover and 
line 

Gates Ave 01-072 Line manhole 

2nd St 01-086 Line manhole 

Duncan Ave 10-039 Line manhole 

18th St 06-244 Line manhole 

  
  
  
  
FY 1012-13 
$150K 
  
  
  

8th St 04-054 Line manhole 

Meadows Ave 05-023 Line manhole 

14th St 06-191 Line manhole 

Cedar Way 25-012 Line manhole 

Village Dr. 25-025 Line manhole 

11th St 09-028 Line manhole 
Rowell Ave 05-055 Replace manhole cover 

Flournoy Rd 17-057 Line manhole 

14th St 06-050 Line manhole 

  
  
  
  
  
FY 1014-15 
$150K 
  
  
  
  
  

14th St 06-077 Line manhole 

31st St 17-053 Line manhole 

Tennyson St 05-020 Line manhole 

Voorhees Ave 05-005 Line manhole 
The Strand 14-064 Replace manhole cover 

Manhattan Ave 11-116A Line manhole 

19th St 06-030 Line manhole 

Blanche Rd 17-040 Line manhole 

1st St 01-061 Line manhole 

Marine Ave 15-053 Repair mortar 

Manhattan Ave 11-117 Line manhole 

Locations to be determined through further condition assessment. 
 FY 1014-15 
$150K 

 

Justification: The above sewer manholes were inspected and determined to require rehabilitation, repair 
or replacement.  This project will rehabilitate, replace and/or repair the sewer manholes 
listed above.  Manholes provide maintenance access to sewer mains. 

 

Project Cost Information: 
 
Capital Costs: 
Funding  
Source(s) 

Previous 
Approp’ns 

FY2012-13 FY 2013-14 FY2014-15 FY2015-16 FY2016-17 TOTAL 

        
Sewer Fund $100,000 $150,000  150,000  150,000 $550,000 
        
TOTAL $100,000 $150,000  150,000  150,000 $550,000 
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ATTACHMENT 1 
City of Manhattan Beach 

2013-2017 Capital Improvement Plan 
 

 
 
 
Project Title: Rehabilitation of Sewer Manholes FY 2012-13 through FY 2014-15 

Continued 

 
Location Map: 

 
 
 

 




































